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October 25, 2019 

Via Electronic Filing 

(shpda.online@shpda.alabama.gov) 
 
Ms. Emily Marsal, Esq. 
Executive Director 

State Health Planning and Development Agency 
100 North Union Street, Suite 870 
Montgomery, Alabama  36104 
  

RE: Change of Ownership; Bio-Medical Applications of Alabama, Inc. d/b/a Fresenius 
Medical Care Eastern Shore; SHPDA ID 003-D4980 
 

Dear Ms. Marsal: 

 
We respectfully submit to the State Health Planning and Development Agency (“SHPDA”) 

this letter as an attachment to the Notice of Change of Ownership form that we are filing pursuant 
to Chapter 410-1-7-.04, Rules and Regulations of the Alabama Certificate of Need Program (the 

“Rules”).  The proposed change of ownership involves the purchase by Fresenius Medical Care 
Baldwin County, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“FMC”), of a twenty-five (25) 
station ESRD facility and related assets located in Baldwin County, Alabama (the “Facility”).  

 

FMC is a joint venture that will be owned seventy percent (70%) by Bio-Medical 
Applications of Alabama, Inc. (“BMA”), and thirty percent (30%) by Fairhope Dialysis, LLC.  
BMA currently owns the Facility.  

 

I. Overview of Proposed Transaction.  
 
The Facility is located at 124 Professional Park Dr., Fairhope, Baldwin County, Alabama 

36532.  BMA is authorized to operate twenty-five (25) in-center hemodialysis stations, one of 

which is an isolation station. 
.   
The following summarizes the transaction proposed to take place within five days of receipt 

of an ESRD facility license in the name of FMC issued by the Alabama Department of Public 

Health (“ADPH”), and responds to inquiries posed in the SHPDA Change of Ownership 
Application.  The proposed transaction involves the acquisition by FMC of the Facility and its 
assets from BMA.  In consideration for the assets being transferred, FMC will make a fair market 
value payment to BMA.  
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II. SHPDA Requirements for Change of Ownership 
 

Concerning the questions posed in the Change of Ownership Application, please note the 
following:  

 
1.  The Financial Scope of the Project. BMA will contribute the assets of the Facility 

to FMC in exchange for an equity membership interest in FMC equal to the fair market value of 
those assets. Fairhope Dialysis, LLC will purchase an equity membership interest in FMC in 
exchange for a fair market value cash payment. The Transaction does not involve new cost 
associated with the Facility exceeding the following expenditure thresholds: (i) $3,024,899 for 

major medical equipment; (ii) $1,209,958 for new annual operating costs; and (iii) $6,049,799 for 
capital expenditures. 

 
2.  Services to be Offered.  The contemplated transaction will not result in any new or 

additional services to those already authorized to be provided by BMA.  
 
3.  Whether the Proposal will Include the Addition of Any New Beds.  The 

contemplated transaction will not result in the addition of new beds.  

 
4.  Whether the Proposal will Involve the Conversion of Beds.  The contemplated 

transaction will not result in the conversion of beds.  
 

5.  Whether the Assets and Stock (if any) will be acquired.  As described more 
particularly above, FMC will acquire the Facility assets from BMA. 

 

III. Requested Action 

 
Based upon the above description of the proposed transaction and a showing that there will 

be no change in health services, conversion of beds, or increase or decrease in bed capacity, we 
respectfully request that you exercise your authority under Chapter 410-1-7-.04(2) of the Rules 

and determine that a Certificate of Need is not required for the consummation of this proposed 
transaction.  In accordance with the Rules, I am enclosing with this request a check in the amount 
of $2,500 made payable to the Alabama State Health Planning and Development Agency. 

 

Should you have any questions or need further information, please feel free to contact me 
at the number or address listed above.  Thank you in advance for your assistance with this matter. 
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Best regards, 
   

, 
 
 
 

      Holly S. Hosford 
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